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April 3, 2020

To Fairlington Village Unit Owners
to Each Unit via USPS April 2020
Arlington, VA 22206

Re:  Egress Window Legal Opinions 

Dear Unit Owner:

During the past few years Fairlington Villages’ Board of Directors (Board) has received 
requests to install “egress windows” in the basement rooms of town homes and multi-unit buildings.
Many of these rooms, which are legally characterized as “dens” at Fairlington Villages, are being 
used instead as “bedrooms.”  Arlington County and the City of Alexandria require bedrooms to meet 
Building Code Safety Specifications, including an egress window of specified dimensions that allows 
occupants in the room an avenue of escape other than the door in the event of an emergency.

Recognizing the serious implications of modifying existing structures to accommodate 
“egress windows,” the Board established a consultative decision-making process.  At the October 2,
2019 meeting of the Board, President Terry Placek announced the formation of the “Egress Window 
Working Group” (EWWG) to assist the Board in developing a formal policy on egress windows.  She 
also announced the Board's consensus to table two (2) "egress window" requests that were pending 
before it and to put a hold on any further requests until the Board approved and published a formal
egress window policy.

A list of actions to be completed under the EWWG Charter included obtaining formal Opinion
from Legal Counsel.  Management requested the Opinion from Fairlington Villages’ Legal Counsel, 
Mr. Peter K. Stackhouse, Esq., on whether the Board had the requisite authority to change a portion 
of the Condominium’s common elements by: 1)  recharacterization (e.g. converting portions of the 
common elements of the condominium to a limited common element for the exclusive use of a unit), 
2) through an easement giving possessory rights, or 3) a license authorizing rights of use.

Mr. Stackhouse’s Opinion (Attachment A) was received on January 14, 2020.  In it, Mr. 
Stackhouse advised that “as a basic rule of condominium law, general common area cannot be
converted into limited common area and all unit owners have the right to use general common area 
while limited common area may be used exclusively by an individual unit owner [for example] as a 
back yard, patio, etc.”   Based on his review of the Virginia Condominium Act, judicial precedent, and
Fairlington Villages' By-Laws and Declaration, he concluded that the Board does not have legal 
authority to grant a variance to a limited number of unit owners who want to expand their existing 
window wells into the [general] common area of the Association.  Because the EWWG was 
scheduled to meet January 27, and that meeting would occur before the Board had any opportunity 
to discuss the Opinion, Management recommended the Working Group’s activities be temporarily
suspended so it could be taken up at the February Board meeting.

The Board discussed Mr. Stackhouse's Opinion at its February 5 meeting.   Because Mr. 
Stackhouse concluded that the Board did not have the authority required to adopt a policy favorable
to egress window installation and because of the importance of this subject to the community and 
unit owners, the Board requested second opinions from two well-established common interest 
community lawyers.



The first Opinion (Attachment B), was received on March 4 from Mr. Wil Washington, Esq., a
Principal at Chadwick Washington Moriarty Elmore & Bunn, PC.  Mr. Washington concluded that
“Pursuant to a careful review of the Declaration [Master Deed] and Bylaws of the Association, it is
our opinion that the Board of Directors lacks authority to create limited common elements, reserved
common elements or to grant easements to unit owners over the general common elements for the
benefit of unit owners who seek to have egress routes created from their units through the expansion
of their basement windows.”

The second Opinion (Attachment C) was received on March 12 from Ms. Lucia Anna Trigiani
of MercerTrigiani.  It is Ms. Trigiani's professional opinion that an argument could be made to defend
the Board should it conclude it had authority to adopt a policy favorable to the installation of egress
windows, but that it would be expensive to the Association.  It is also Ms. Trigiani’s opinion that
because the vetting required for a policy of this magnitude and for a community Fairlington Village’s
size would necessarily include multiple, additional reviews and consultations with one or more
structural engineers, the Association’s certified public accountant, and attorneys, the cumulative
costs would, under a cost-benefit analysis, in all probability be cost-prohibitive.

Given the advice of these three (3) seasoned, experienced and established lawyers in the
common interest community field,  the Board concludes that its only viable option is to establish a
policy disallowing requests to modify the common elements of the Condominium (e.g., a building’s
foundation and the land outside the building around existing and proposed windows) or requests to
allow exclusive use by a unit for the installation of egress windows because it does not appear that
the Board has the authority to grant such requests under the Association’s Declaration and Bylaws,
the Virginia Condominium Act, and Virginia judicial precedent.  In addition, both the costs to defend
against a challenge to a Board decision to adopt a favorable policy and the costs required by the
complexities of a favorable policy, including research, consulting, and all other elements of vetting,
are equally prohibitive.

The Board further concludes, upon review of the legal advice, that the safest and least
expensive avenue toward a policy favorable to the installation of egress windows at Fairlington
Villages requires formal amendment to the Association’s Bylaws, pursuant to Article XIV, Section 1:

(a) “By a vote of the owners of sixty six and two thirds (66-2/3%) Percent of the Undivided
Interest  in the Common Elements at any regular or special meeting, provided that notice
of the proposed amendment shall have been given to each Unit Owner at least twenty
one (21) days in advance of such meeting; or

(b) Pursuant to a written instrument duly executed by the owners of at least sixty-six and two
thirds (66-2/3%) of the Undivided Interest in the Common Elements.”

The process for such amendments is lengthy and dependent upon many variables. It
requires the agreement of at least two-thirds of Unit Owners, calculated using each individual unit’s
percentage interest (par value) in the Condominium, to proceed. Because two thirds of the total par
value in the Association must agree to changes, the Board does not believe the time and
extraordinary expense of attempting to amend the Bylaws is warranted or justifiable at this time.

Sincerely,

Terry L. Placek, President
Fairlington Villages Board of Directors

Attachments: 3 Legal Opinions

S/



Attachment A



Attachment B - Page 1



Attachment B - Page 2



Attachment C - Page 1



Attachment C - Page 2



Attachment C - Page 3



Attachment C - Page 4



Attachment C - Page 5



Attachment C - Page 6




